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GLENVILLE STATE COLLEGE BOND REQUIREMENTS 
 
The following bond requirements are added: 
 
1. Bid Bond.  5% of total proposal. 
2. Labor and Material Payment Bond.  100% of total contract amount. 
3. Performance Bond.  100% of total contract amount. 
 
GLENVILLE STATE COLLEGE EXHIBITS LIST MODIFICATION 
 
1. The alphabetical number was added to the exhibits originally disclosed in the Request for 
 Proposals. 
 
GLENVILLE STATE COLLEGE EXHIBITS ADDED 
 
2. The following exhibits were added: 
 
 Exhibit “O”:  Louis Bennett Hall Floor Plan for the Bookstore area. 
 
 Exhibit “P”:  Glenville State College Administrative Policy 3 Drugs and Alcohol Policy. 
 
 Exhibit “Q”:  Aramark Rates. 
 
 Exhibit “R”:  Bid Bond Form with Bid Bond Preparation Instructions. 
 
 Exhibit “S”:  Labor and Material Payment Bond with Acknowledgments and Preparation  
           Instructions. 
 
 Exhibit “T”:  Performance Bond with Acknowledgments and Preparation Instructions. 
 
 Exhibit “U”:  Fresh Food Act. 
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ARAMARK REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS 
  
1. Can you confirm whether or not concessions is part of this contract? If so, can you verify the 

sports that will be involved? 
 

Response:  Glenville State College will entertain ideas and aspects within a proposal related to 
offering or facilitating concession sales.  The sports that could be made applicable include 
Men’s and Women’s Basketball and Football.  Softball or Baseball would be specifically 
excluded.  Any offerings or proposals relevant to concessions must be presented as an option 
for consideration only, and not as a condition for any of the other aspects specifically 
requested in the RFP. 

 
2. One more process question- are “electronic signatures” (aka DocuSign) allowed in our 
 “original” proposal? We’re trying to be cognizant of the pandemic and having documents 
 signed in person.  
 
 Response: Electronic signatures are acceptable within the proposal.  There are certain rules 
 regarding digital signatures that may become applicable to a subsequent contract, but will not 
 impact the validity of the actual proposal. 
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SODEXO REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS 
 
 
1. What were GSC enrollment numbers (full time, part time, resident, commuter) for 2018 & 
 2019?  
 
 Response: Glenville State College has extensive enrollment and other information available in 
 its annual Fact Books, which are available through our web-site.  The 2019/2020 Fact Book can 
 be accessed at https://www.glenville.edu/sites/default/files/2020-07/FactBook_2019.pdf  
 
2. How many commuters attended classes more than 9 hours per week in 2018, 2019, 2020?  
 
 Response: Refer to Response to question 1 above. 
 
3. How many students lived in campus housing in 2018 & 2019? Goodwin Hall? Pioneer Village? 
 Riverfront Residence? 
 
 Response: Refer to Response to question 1 above. 
 
4. How many board days are offered per year by semester? 
 
 Response: 16 weeks per semester (Spring & Fall). GSC also conducts two 4 week terms in the 
 Summer and has not historically offered dining or board plan services specifically for those 
 terms.  We would like to receive options for consideration for food service and/or board plans 
 to be made available to the students during those times. 
 
5. Which students are required to purchase a meal plan (mandatory)? 
 
 Response: All Residence Hall students are required to purchase a full meal plan unless 
 specifically approved for exemption due to documented medical reasons.  All off-campus 
 students (Commuters), taking 9 hours or more, are required to purchase a $50 “flex” meal 
 plan, which they can use in any of the food service facilities. 
 
6. What is the minimum plan buy-in for mandatory students? 
 

Response: For Academic Years 2020/2021 and 2021/2022, all mandatory Board Plan students 
are charged by the College $2,300 per semester as a flat Board charge.  The Food Service 
provider offers the students certain meal plan options to select for the semester that best 
meets their individual needs.  The College is currently billed weekly by the Food Service 
provider based upon that week’s dorm housing student count and the corresponding sliding 
scale head count rate. 

 

https://www.glenville.edu/sites/default/files/2020-07/FactBook_2019.pdf
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7. Is a student living in Pioneer village or in Riverfront Residence required to purchase one of the 
 21, 14 or 10 meal plans? 
 

Response: All students, regardless of residence hall, have the same requirements for 
purchasing a meal plan. 

 
 
8. Are full and/or part-time commuter students required to make a meal plan purchase? If so, 
 what is the minimum buy in? 
 

Response:  All off-campus students (Commuters), taking 9 hours or more, are required to 
purchase a $50 “flex” meal plan, which they can use in any of the food service facilities.  GSC 
will consider other ideas or options for commuter students; however, no change to the $50 
per semester charged to those students can take effect until the 2022/2023 Academic Year. 

 
9. How many students purchased voluntary meal plans in 2019 and 2020? Which meal plans did 
 they purchase? 
 

Response: This information is not readily available to provide, but we believe it to be a fairly 
low number.   

 
10. What are the faculty/staff meal plans, how many are currently purchased, and can 
 faculty/staff use payroll deduction to purchase? 
 

Response: This information is not readily available to provide, but we believe it to be a fairly 
low number.  Relevant to this and the student topic referenced in question 9 above, we 
believe this to be a substantial opportunity for future value and improvement in the services 
made available to those two demographics.  Through creative optionality, and cost-
competitiveness, there could be increases in overall food service utilization. 

 
11. Are summer meal plans offered? If so, please describe the offer (meals, flex, price)? 
 

Response: Currently, negotiated meal plans are offered during the summer for certain 
Summer camps.  These occur on a case by case basis, with varying attendance.  It is not 
uncommon to have a Summer camp with 100+ attendees.  What has not been offered in the 
past are structured meal plans or similar options, for students attending the Summer terms.  
GSC conducts two 4 week Summer academic terms.  We would like to be presented options to 
offer to the students, or to other potential patrons, either specifically during those terms, or 
at other times as well, in order to consider in our overall selection decision process. 
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12. Please provide 2018, 2019 & 2020 dining financials for Mollohan’s Restaurant and the Rusty 
 Musket? 
 

Response: This information is not available to be provided. 
 
13. Please provide revenue by revenue stream, cash, credit, flex, exchange and other per location. 
 Mollohan restaurant, Rusty Musket, catering, specifically. 
 

Response: This information is not available to be provided. 
 
14. Please provide a breakout of transactions per dining location- one full week in Oct, one full 
 week in Feb, and one full week in July. 
 

Response: This information is not available to be provided. 
 
15. Are there specific off-campus community groups that visit campus currently? Please share the 
 number of participants in the group and how they use the campus dining program. 
 

Response: GSC hosts various off-campus groups from time to time.  Those would include 
things such as: summer camps; local school system groups for banquets or other events; and 
other guests or constituents for meetings or other events.  Those events often coincide with 
providing certain food service or catering ranging from basic refreshments and snacks to full 
sit down catered meals.  GSC would like to increase the attractiveness to off-campus groups or 
individuals to avail themselves of the food service options, whether they be individual guests 
dining in one of the food service venues or more formal catering options.  Price 
competitiveness, quality, and advertising awareness are all expected to drive this increase in 
community utilization. 

 
16. Summer conference business 2019? Potential 2021 summer conference business? 
 

Response: See relevant aspects in the Response to question 15 above.  GSC looks forward to 
conducting more camps and other events on campus starting in the Summer of 2021, subject 
to the continued return to more post-COVID “normalcy”. 

 
17. What is your current OneCard system and what version of software are you using? 
 

Response: GSC does not currently have a Onecard system.  We would like to achieve this some 
time in the future, but that is not a critical expectation with this RFP. 
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18. Who owns the current cash register system, and will it transfer to the new provider? 
 

Response: The Food Service Provider owns the current cash register system.  Transferability 
would be subject to negotiation. 

 
19. Who owns the current dining equipment and smallwares, and will they transfer to the new 
 provider? 
 

Response: GSC owns the majority of smallwares and other fixed asset equipment.  There are 
other smallwares owned by Aramark.  The transferability of any such items would be subject 
to negotiations.  There are certain fixed assets that have not been fully amortized or 
depreciated and thus owned partially by both parties.  Transfer of those assets would also be 
subject to negotiations.  

 
20. Is campus catering exclusive for your current vendor on campus? 
 

Response: It is GSC’s intent to provide priority rights for catering to our Food Service partner.  
However, we must maintain some flexibility to secure necessary services at a competitive 
price or at times that may not be convenient for the Food Service partner. 

 
21. Employee payroll – is there a union? Are there existing rules related to employee seniority 
 and the like? 
 

Response: All employees engaged in delivering the food services are to be employees of the 
Food Services provider.  All Food Service employees are required to abide by College Policies 
while on campus premises.  The College reserves the right to recommend or determine 
acceptability of certain employees of the Provider.  There are also certain non-compete 
expectations relevant to the Provider’s and the College’s employees.  Otherwise, there are no 
other specific expectations placed upon the Provider for its management of its employees. 

 
22. How many students work on campus? How many students work with campus dining? 
 

Response:  There are approximately 115 students employed on campus at some point in time 
during the year.  Their working hours and employment durations vary widely.  Any student 
who works for Campus Dining would be employed directly by that party and GSC does not 
currently keep track of how many students the food service provider employs. 

 
23. How many and what type of events are held in the Waco Center each year? 
 

Response:  All home Basketball, Volleyball, Acrobatics & Tumbling, and Wrestling 
competitions.  Various non-College sporting competitions.  Various other events for the 
College and/or the Public.  Certain catering services are occasionally applicable to certain of 
those events. 
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24. What is the capacity of the Ike & Sue Morris Stadium? 
 

Response: Approximately 5,000. 
 
25. How many and what type of events are held in the Ike & Sue Morris Stadium each year? 
 

Response: All home Football, Soccer, or Track events, as well as similar sporting events for the 
local secondary school system and for other local groups as well. 

 
26. Are there floor plans for Louis Bennett Hall? 
 

Response: See attached Exhibit “O”. 
 
27. What is the square footage of usable space for the Louis Bennett Hall coffee shop? 
 

Response: Approximately 124 square feet of interior space within the coffee shop room itself.  
Approximately 64 square feet of storage closet space attached to the interior coffee shop 
room.  Approximately 300 square feet available in the rear, comprised of two separate rooms 
plus closet and bathroom area, which could be used for office space, storage, or other 
purposes. 

 
28. How many people visit the library on average per day during the school year? 
 

Response: Average door count visitors to the Library per month, during the academic 
semesters, is approximately 3,000 per month. 

 
29. Corrections Trainee Dining: 
 
 a. What price is/was charged per participant for meals in 2019, 2020 & currently? 
 

 Response: The currently effective cost is $17/day (3 meals/day) 
 

 b. Which meals are served per day/week when in full operation? 
 

 Response: Breakfast, Lunch, Dinner.  13 meals per week – Lunch Monday through 
 Lunch Friday. 
 

 c. How many days/weeks per year is the training in session per year? 
 
  Response: Approximately 48-50 weeks per year. 
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30. Can you quantify expectations around the “substantial capital amount due at the start of the 
 contract?” 
 

Response: We cannot provide any more specific expectations beyond what was stated in the 
RFP.  GSC does strongly believe there to be substantial value to a Food Service provider in 
securing the long term partnership we are seeking and we do expect a substantial, up front 
financial commitment and payment from the successful candidate upon completion of the 
contract.  That financial incentive is expected to not only be committed toward a capital 
improvement project for the food services themselves, but a portion of it is also expected to 
be made available to the College for its own discretionary purposes.  

 
31. Section 10.2 – Are all the documents in this section (10.2.1 – 10.2.7) due with contract 
 proposal or at time of contract award? 
 

Response: Not all documents listed in 10.2 are required with the proposal.  They will be 
required in order to finalize the contract. 

 
32. Section 11.11 Exhibit “L” – Is the State of WV Drug Free Workplace Conformance Affidavit due 
 with contract proposal or at time of contract award? 
 

Response: This is required before a contract can be awarded.  It is not mandatory to be 
included with the submitted proposal. 

 
33. Under Exhibit A, number 11, DMAPS food service shall be provided under a separate fee 
 structure, and a separate contract with the College.  Are there two sample agreements that 
 must be submitted, one for the Campus and one for DMAPS?  What financial arrangement for 
 DMAPS is required? 
 

Response: Two sample agreements are not expected with the proposal.  The successful bidder 
will be expected to conform with the existing, or better, terms already in place relevant to the 
DMAPS meals, all of which will be finalized during negotiation. 

 
34. Under Exhibit K: Is a separate Professional insurance policy (which is not included under GL) 
 required? Is a separate policy for “errors and omissions” insurance for “wrongful act” 
 required?  
 
 Response: Wrongful Act Professional Liability Insurance is required. 
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35. Under Exhibit M, in the Report Content section regarding drug testing, it states: “average 
 number of employees in connection with the construction on the public improvement.” Please 
 clarify if this is an annual drug test or random? If random, please clarify if this is required for 
 the Food Service operations? 
 
 Response: Refer to West Virginia Code as listed in the form.  See link below. 
 
 https://www.wvlegislature.gov/wvcode/code.cfm?chap=21&art=1D#01 
 
36. Under the RFP, is contractor required to submit the State of West Virginia “proof of 
 compliance” documents under Section 2.2 at time of proposal submission, or before award? 
 
 Response: Before award. 
 
37. Under the RFP, Pursuant to Section 4.4.2.2, outside of the examples provided, please highlight 
 all other responsibilities Proposer shall have for keeping the facilities secure. 
 

Response: Provider is expected to follow standard best practices in ensuring the facilities are 
kept secure. 

 
38. Under the RFP, Pursuant to Section 5.1, will there be any unamortized investment as of July 1, 
 2021 from the current food service provider? 
 

Response: No unamortized investment from the current Food Service provider is expected as 
of July 1, 2021. 

 
39. Is there any unamortized investment that Sodexo would need to include in its proforma? 
 

Response: To GSC’s knowledge, there is no unamortized investment that would exist at the 
initiation of the contract.  However, one exception, as referenced in Response 19 above, is any 
unamortized fixed assets.  The unamortized value at July 1, 2021 will be approximately 
$15,000-$25,000.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.wvlegislature.gov/wvcode/code.cfm?chap=21&art=1D#01
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ALADDIN REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS 
 
1. Please confirm the attending companies’ names that will be participating in the RFP process.  
 

Response: Aladdin, Aramark, Sodexo 
 
2. Which party owns the smallwares?  Glenville State or Aramark? 
 

Response: GSC owns the majority of smallwares and other fixed asset equipment.  There are 
other smallwares owned by Aramark.  The transferability of any such items would be subject 
to negotiations.  There are certain fixed assets that have not been fully amortized or 
depreciated and thus owned partially by both parties.  Transfer of those assets would also be 
subject to negotiations. 

 
3. Please provide a detailed smallwares inventory by item, quantity and party ownership. 
  

Response: A detailed inventory of smallwares is not available. 
 
4. If any smallwares or equipment are owned by Aramark and will be removed from the site, 
 please provide a list and quantity. 
 

Response: There are certain serving vessels and other smallwares owned by Aramark, but no 
itemized listing available to provide. 

 
5. Has Glennville or Aramark conducted any customer surveys?  If so, please provide the results 
 for the past 2 years. 
 

Response: GSC and Aramark both have conducted surveys in the past.  The results of those are 
not readily available to provide.  GSC expects for this process to become more formal, 
objective, and transparent going forward, and to be a critical element of the quality assurance 
KPIs that are implemented. 

 
6. Please clarify this section. What is the current configuration?  Does Aramark use an outside 
 internet service at their expense or does the college supply the service at no charge? 
 

Response: Aramark utilizes its own internet service at its expense.  If there are types of 
connections permitted to the college network and connection types that are not, please 
disseminate these.  "4.4.1.3. Telephone and internet equipment, connections and services and 
except for the fax machine, fax machine line, credit card machines, the line(s) for card 
machines, dsl lines or service and the computer connection to the main office computer." 
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Response: GSC provides phone and the phone network for Aramark’s use.  Aramark’s registers 
and other Point of Sale equipment, as well as its timeclock equipment, all communicates on 
GSC’s network.   

 
7. Are the current managers and employees bound to any contractual requirements that prohibit 
 them from working at Wilmington College with another Dining Partner; contractually and/or 
 non-compete? 
 

Response: There is certain non-compete language preventing GSC from hiring any Aramark 
employees within 6 months of a contract termination.  GSC is not aware of any other 
limitations that may be in place specifically by Aramark over its employees, or if separate 
consent for such a situation would be granted or withheld. 

 
8. Is Alcoholic Beverage service allowed on campus at catering events? 
 

Response: Alcoholic Beverage service is allowed for certain catered or other events when 
specifically authorized and when delivered through an entity holding a valid State of West 
Virginia ABC license.  Any such situations are currently accommodated by an entity other than 
GSC’s current food service provider.  GSC will consider proposals that include the scenario of 
the Food Service partner providing this service directly.  See Exhibit “P”. 

 
9. What has been the average percentage of meals consumed per meal plan (participation rate)?  
 Please provide this by meal plan for the past 3 years. 
 

Response: This information is not available to be disclosed. 
 
10. If known, please share the Manager and Hourly Team Members Seniority and Rates of Pay.  
 
 Response: This information is not available to be disclosed. 
 
11. Are the employees part of a collective bargaining agreement? 
 

Response: Not to GSC’s knowledge. 
 
12. Please provide the Fall/Spring board counts, by meal plan, for Spring 2021, Fall 2020, Spring 
 2020, Fall 2019, Spring 2019, Fall 2018, Spring 2018 and Fall 2017. 
 

Response: Glenville State College has extensive enrollment and other information available in 
its annual Fact Books, which are available through our web-site.  The 2019/2020 Fact Book can 
be accessed at https://www.glenville.edu/sites/default/files/2020-07/FactBook_2019.pdf  

 
 
 

https://www.glenville.edu/sites/default/files/2020-07/FactBook_2019.pdf
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13. Please share the yearly revenues for the last three years as follows: 
 

Response: This information is not available to be disclosed. 
 
 a. Summer Meal Plans 
 b. Summer Programs 
 c. Summer Conferences 
 d. Catering 
 e. Other  
 f. Resident Dining Cash, Credit and Flex 
 g. Retail Dining Cash, Credit and Flex 
 
14. What are the maximum years for amortization of equipment/investment? 10 or 15 years 
 

Response: This is subject to negotiations, but will in no case be longer than the duration of the 
contract. 
 

15. Will the college be responsible for the following items: 
 
 a. Shampooing/steaming of carpets GSC 
 b. Buffing/waxing floors GSC 
 c. Grease removal from premises Provider 
 d. Grease trap cleaning Provider 
 e. Hood cleaning Provider 
 f. Trash removal from premises GSC 
 g. Pest control program GSC 
 h. Annual pressure washing of Docks GSC where applicable.   
 
16. Reference is made to section 5 (5.1, 5.2, 5.3).  Is Glenville willing to accept other types of 
 offers only?  Or is section 5 100% mandatory for submission before other types of offers can 
 be submitted? 
 

Response: The nature of the proposal submitted is ultimately at the discretion of the 
proposer.  GSC will consider other approaches toward achieving and realizing the value 
available through this long term partnership.  However, we strongly encourage that the 
proposal contain at least one option that conforms in some way with what is outlined in 
section 5.1.   
 
5. FINANCIAL & COST SPECIFICATIONS 
The desired financial offers are listed below. However, other types of offers may be made in 
addition to those listed below." 
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5.1. CAPITAL & FINANCIAL INCENTIVE INVESTMENT 
The capital and financial incentive investment funds will be used for renovations to the space 
and foodservice equipment, furniture, other apparatus, or for other uses by GSC at its sole 
discretion. The use of the capital investment funds will be determined by the successful 
proposer and GSC. GSC will have final approval as to how and when any of the funds are 
allocated and spent. A substantial amount of the total capital and financial incentive 
investment funds is due on the effective date of the contract. 
The minimum capital and financial incentive is $3,500,000.00. 
 
5.2. SPECIAL FUNDS 
Each year of operations that a contract or agreement is in full force and effect, the successful 
proposer shall provide the funds listed below at a minimum. These funds must be available 
by the first date of the contract period unless otherwise stated below or otherwise agreed 
upon in writing. 
 
5.2.1. PRESIDENT’S FUND: $15,000.00 for catering services and meal passes to be used at 
the discretion of the GSC President or designee. 
 
5.2.2. MEAL PLAN SCHOLARSHIP FUND: $60,000.00 for scholarships to be awarded at GSC’s 
discretion. 
 
5.2.3. REPAIR & MAINTENANCE FUND: $20,000.00 for repair and maintenance of equipment 
costs associated with the Campus Food Service Program. 
 
5.2.4. FOUNDATION FUND: $5,000.00 for catering services or other donations for the GSC 
Foundation for catering. 
 
5.3. COMMISSIONS 
The successful proposer will pay GSC an established monthly guaranteed commission, a 
monthly percentage-based commission and/or a combination thereof on the catering 
services and the Flex Dollar Program. Such payments must be received no later than the 15th 
of the following month after the services are performed or flex dollars have been used." 
 

17. What current KPI's are in place?  Please share the results of such KPI's.  "5.5. KEY 
 PERFORMANCE INDICATOR (KPI).  Certain Key Performance Indicator metrics are expected to 
 be defined and  adhered to. At a minimum, these KPI’s shall be structured as a mechanism to 
 monitor and control overall quality, as well as cost competitiveness." 
 

Response: No KPIs are currently in formal effect.  This has just recently been initiated by GSC.  
KPIs to monitor and ensure quality as well as cost competitiveness, in an open, collaborative, 
and transparent manner, are expected at a minimum. 
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18. What are the details to these non-exclusive rights?  "9.1. NON-EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS: It is the 
 intent  of GSC to award a non-exclusive rights contract for food services to the successful 
 proposer."  
 

Response: GSC requires the ability to provide or secure certain food or meals or catering 
services for certain situations or scenarios where the Food Service Provider is not willing or 
able to do so in an acceptable or economical manner.  The parameters around this will be 
subject to negotiation within the contract. 

 
19. Pricing for the current meal plan daily rate sliding scale was not provided in exhibit A.  Please 
 provide. 
 

Response: See Exhibit “Q”. 
 

20. What are the policies surrounding how a student may currently use a meal exchange?  Retail? 
 Catering? Other? 
 

Response: See Responses to similar questions in the question and Response section for 
Sodexo above. 

 
21. How many academic board feeding days is the college open for the fall semester and spring 
 semester? 
 

Response: See Responses to similar questions in the question and Response section for 
Sodexo above. 

 
 
22. In which meal plan do these staff members participate?  "5.4. Staff Contractual Meal Plans. 
 Certain College staff members are provided partial meal plans as part of their duties. 
 Currently, there are approximately 20 staff members who receive contractual meal plans." 
 

Response: The staff referenced here are provided the same meal plan choice as a traditional 
Board Plan student is offered. 

 
23. Please provide the number of occurrences per year and the number of athletes at each meal. 
 "5.5.4. Teams are provided a “pre-game meal” typically 6 hours prior to game time for home 
 events. These meals are coordinated with coaches. The menus are typically within the normal 
 scope of residential meals provided to the greater student body. As this meal will often serve 
 as the student athletes’ meal for a given meal period, these meals are not charged to 
 athletics. Team member student athletes and coaches who are not on a meal plan are entitled 
 to pre-game meals. Athletics is not charged for these meals." 
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Response: GSC has approximately 400 +- athletes among the various programs.  The vast 
majority of athletes reside in campus housing and thus are also on a board plan.  As such, 
while this is an extra “service” provided to the athletes, it is primarily already covered by the 
student’s board plan count. 

 
24. How many games each year and how many members are on each team?  "5.5.3. Athletic 
 teams are provided boxed meals for road trips at no cost to the Athletics Department." 
 

Response: GSC has approximately 400 +- athletes among the various programs.  The vast 
majority of athletes reside in campus housing and thus are also on a board plan.  As such, 
while this is an extra “service” provided to the athletes, it is primarily already covered by the 
student’s board plan count. 

 
25. How many games each year and how many officials? "5.5.2. Post-game meals (boxed meals) 
 are provided to athletic officials." 
 

Response: We do not have a good count to provide for this.  The meals mentioned here are 
not provided free of charge.  The food service provider would bill for these meals. 

 
26. Please provide the past 3 years of summer hours, dining participants and revenues. "8. 
 SUMMER SEMESTER.  The successful proposer will provide food and beverages for any GSC 
 event upon  request. Currently, the menu selection, the hours of operation and the meal 
 prices vary depending on the type of business and the volume of business. However, GSC 
 desires regular  menu selection, regular normal hours of operation and fixed meal prices 
 during the summer semesters so as to offer full dining services year-round". 
 

Response: See Responses to similar questions regarding Summer dining services elsewhere in 
this document. 

 
27. Which party retains unspent flex for resident plans and nonresident flex?  College or Dining 
 Partner. 
 

Response: Flex dollars carry over from Fall to Spring, and then expire at the end of the Spring 
semester.  Expired funds are retained by the Food Service provider.  Board plan usage is billed 
on a per capita basis weekly and any difference between what was billed to the Student by 
the College and what the student actually incurred with the food service provider is retained 
by the College.  However, any unused Flex portion of a student’s selected meal plan is 
retained by the Provider. 
 

28. Please elaborate on the fee structure desired for DMAPS.  Is the college looking for pricing 
 with commission? Or some other type of fee arrangement.  If a fee how has the college 
 managed this in the past? "11. DMAPSThe College currently contracts with WV DMAPS 
 (Department of Military Affairs and Public Safety), and with the WV Division of Corrections 



GLENVILLE STATE COLLEGE 
200 HIGH ST., GLENVILLE, WV 26351 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
PROJECT NAME AND NUMBER:  #GSC21-001 FOOD SERVICES 

ADDENDUM #1 
MAY 10, 2021 

 

Page 17 of 18 

 

 and Rehabilitation, to provide space for its educational and training objectives at a site 
 located a short distance from the main campus. Food service is expected to be provided from 
 time to time to certain of those personnel or students, either within the existing on campus 
 food service facility, or at the separate off-campus facility. Those food services shall be 
 provided under a separate feestructure, and a separate contract with the College." 
 

Response:  See Responses already provided relevant to DMAPS elsewhere in this document.  
In addition to that information, GSC does expect the DMAPS food service to be priced with 
commission. 

 
29. Is the College currently in a Fee Type Contract with Aramark or a P&L Type Contract? 
 

Response: Fee type. 
 
30. What is the College's desired contract type for the future?  P&L or Fee? 
 

Response: The College prefers the predictability of a fee type contract, but will consider the 
benefits of other approaches, if they are proposed. 

 
31. Please provide the DMAPS details for the past 3 years.  What were the number of 
 participants?  How many feeding days per year?  DO they eat breakfast lunch and dinner?  
 What were the  rates charged per person and per meal? 
 

Response: When the DMAPS service returns to “normal” post COVID operations, the 
expectation is for there to be approximately 75 students per week served 13 meals per week 
(lunch Monday through lunch Friday) for 48-50 weeks per year.  The rate per student is 
approximately $17 per student for a 3 meal day. 

 
32. What are the current commission percentages for Catering & Retail Flex Dollars? 
 

Response: Flex – 15%. Catering – 5%. 
 
33. Does GSC expect the foodservice provider to replace furniture, fixtures and equipment on an 
 annual basis outside of any capital equipment. 
 

Response: GSC expects the food service provider to manage the annual repair and 
maintenance fund in a manner to maximize the life expectancy and functionality of all 
equipment.  GSC also expects the provider to develop long term strategies relevant to capital 
equipment and coordinate with the College toward executing those strategies toward the goal 
of quality, effective, long term food service. 
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EXHIBIT “A”:  CURRENT OPERATIONS 

 
1. CURRENT OPERATIONS 
 
 Cafeteria-style has traditionally been the core of the College’s dining service    
 experience.  The cafeteria serves as the dining hall for all students, staff, faculty and   
 other patrons.  It is located on the main campus in the Mollohan Campus Community   
 Center on the second floor.  It is an “all you care to eat” facility. 
 
2. CURRENT CAFETERIA OPERATIONS 
 
 The cafeteria stations, meal pricing and hours of operation are listed below.    A four (4) week 
 cycle menu must be submitted to the GSC President or designee one month prior to the 
 beginning of each semester.  Please note that due to the restrictions of Covid, desserts are 
 pre-packaged and soup is served from the main line.  The descriptions below are pre-Covid 
 operations. 
 

CAFETERIA STATIONS 
Main Serving Station A choice of at least two entrees, two vegetables and a starch 
The Grille Quick-serve restaurant menu items such as burgers, BBQ, and fries 
Salad Bar Self-serve with greens, vegetables, fruit, and dressings 
Soup & Action Station Self-serve 
Dessert Station Self-serve baked treats 
Beverage Station Self-serve fountain sodas, teas, waters, juices, milk and hot beverages 

   
 

CAFETERIA MEAL PRICING 
TYPE OF MEAL GUESTS FLEX 

BREAKFAST $6.73 $5.51 
LUNCH $8.66 $7.51 
SOUP, SALAD, LIGHT LUNCH $5.51 $5.08 
DINNER $10.09 $8.61 
BRUNCH $8.99 $7.57 
SENIOR CITIZENS OVER AGE 65 $1.00 DISCOUNT 
CHILDREN UNDER AGE 12 ½ PRICE 

 
CAFETERIA HOURS OF OPERATION 

 Monday - Friday  Saturday & Sunday 
Breakfast 7:00 am – 10:30 am Brunch 11:00 am – 2:00 pm 
Lunch 11:00 am – 2:00 pm Dinner 4:30 pm – 8:00 pm 
Dinner 4:30 pm – 8:00 pm   
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PREMIUM NIGHT 
GUESTS STUDENT FLEX FACULTY FLEX 
$15.14 $11.64 $14.12 

 
 

SUMMER CAMP RATES 
MEAL CLIENT SPONSORED CAMPS MENS FOOTBALL CAMP 

DAY RATE $17.15 $19.84 
BREAKFAST $4.28 $4.96 
LUNCH $6.00 $6.95 
DINNER $6.86 $7.94 

 
THIRD PARTY SPONSORED CAMPS 

NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS RATE 
0 – 50 $23.05 
51 – 100 $22.44 
101 – 150 $22.51 
151 – 200 $21.91 
201 – 250 $21.11 
251 – 300 $20.11 
301 AND OVER $18.40 
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3. BOARD PLANS & MEAL EXCHANGE PLANS 
 
 Board plans are offered to resident students and are cafeteria style unless otherwise mutually 
 agreed upon.  The first meal covered by the board plan in each regular semester will be lunch 
 on the day the residence halls open.  The last meal covered by the board plan for each 
 semester will be dinner on the final day of the semester.  GSC provides a current listing of the 
 persons authorized to be on each meal  plan.  The foodservice contractor keeps a master list of 
 all persons authorized to be on each meal plan.  Meals are not provided if the residence halls 
 are closed during breaks and are not included in the board plan.  Meals are included in the 
 board plan if the residence halls are open during breaks but are limited to brunch and dinner.  
 Other services may be offered during breaks.  The menu selection and hours of operation for 
 such services depend upon the type of  business and the volume of business.  Residents who 
 miss meals in the Mollohan Restaurant on the days and times listed below may exchange 
 these meals at the Rusty Musket.  The type of exchange meal is pre-determined by the 
 foodservice contractor.  Cold lunch boxes will be furnished to boarding students for both on 
 and off campus when requested.  The food service provider will also assist the College in 
 addressing any situations where a meal plan student is in required quarantine or isolation on 
 campus by providing those student’s meals boxed or packaged and ready for delivery to the 
 student at no extra cost. 
 

TYPE OF BOARD PLANS 
Platinum Any 21 meals per week plus “100 Musket Bucks” 
Gold Any 14 meals per week plus “250 Musket Bucks” 
Silver Any 10 meals per week plus “350 Musket Bucks” 

 
 

CURRENT BOARD PLAN ENROLLMENT 
21 MEAL PLAN 14 MEAL PLAN 10 MEAL PLAN 

13 318 99 
  

MEAL EXCHANGE SCHEDULE 
 
Meal exchanges may be made during all open hours of the cafeteria 
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4. CURRENT RETAIL OPERATIONS 
 
 The “Rusty Musket” is currently the only retail operation.  It is located on the main campus in 

the Mollohan Campus Community Center on the second floor.  The food served in the “Rusty 
Musket’ is “fast-food/take out” restaurant style and/or a “grab-and-go” style and includes, 
but is not limited to, hamburgers, hot dogs, pepperoni rolls, steak subs, chicken sandwiches, 
pizza, cold sandwiches, salads, vegetables, fruits, yogurts, puddings and various chips, candies 
and beverages.  Convenience Store Items include, but are not limited to, items such as over-
the-counter medicine, medical supplies, hygiene products and grocery items. 

 
RETAIL OPERATIONS – “RUSTY MUSKET” HOURS OF OPERATION 

7:30 am – 10:00 pm Monday – Friday 
2:00 pm – 10:00 pm Saturday & Sunday 
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5. OTHER CURRENT OPERATIONS 
 
5.1. Catering.  There are on-campus and off-campus catered events.  The food is typically prepared 

in the main kitchen of the cafeteria and delivered and served either on campus or within the 
community.  Menus range from small coffee breaks to large banquet meals up to 600 guests.  
While classes are in session, there are approximately 16-20 catered events weekly.  Events are 
less frequent during the times when classes are not being held. Catering works closely with 
student groups on campus to provide value priced services. 

 
5.2. Concessions.  The contract food service provider does not currently provide concessions for 

any home athletic events, any concerts or any other special events. 
 
5.3. Conference & Events.  Day Camps and Over-Night Camps are hosted when College classes are 

not in session.  Custom menus with non-standard pricing may be negotiated directly with the 
third part hosting the event or conference. 

 
5.4. Staff Contractual Meal Plans.  Certain College staff members are provided partial meal plans 

as part of their duties.  Currently, there are approximately 20 staff members who receive 
contractual meal plans. 

 
5.5. Athletic Team Support.  The College currently offers several dining support services to our 

athletic teams including: 
 
 5.5.1. Early season meals before the first day of classes.  Teams typically check in   

 one to two weeks before the first day of the semester.  The cafeteria serves   
 these “early arrival” athletes.  Dining Services may offer this limited meal   
 service when teams are competing at times where college classes are not   
 being held. 

 
 5.5.2. Post-game meals (boxed meals) are provided to athletic officials. 
 
 5.5.3. Athletic teams are provided boxed meals for road trips at no cost to the   

 Athletics Department. 
 
 5.5.4. Teams are provided a “pre-game meal” typically 6 hours prior to game time   

 for home events.  These meals are coordinated with coaches.  The menus are   
 typically within the normal scope of residential meals provided to the    
 greater student body.  As this meal will often serve as the student athletes’   
 meal for a given meal period, these meals are not charged to athletics.  Team   
 member student athletes and coaches who are not on a meal plan are    
 entitled to pre-game meals.  Athletics is not charged for these meals. 
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6. SPECIAL OCCASION MEALS 
 
 Meals that recognize or honor special occasions such as but not limited to regional   
 customs or events, international or ethnic history or events, GSC history or events and  
 holidays should be incorporated into the menus throughout the academic year along   
 with the appropriate type of music, costumes, decorations and such for the occasion.    
 The successful proposer must work with the appropriate GSC faculty, staff and   
 students to plan and execute such meals and encourage maximum student    
 participation. 
 
7. MONOTONY BREAKERS AND EXAM TREATS 
 
 To break the monotony, various, creative food must be served at special events such   
 as but not limited to banana splits on banana split night, ice cream sundaes on ice   
 cream sundae night and melon on melon night at least one (1) time a month.  Treats   
 must be provided for students during exam week which is usually one (1) week per   
 semester. 
 
8. SUMMER SEMESTER 
 
 The successful proposer will provide food and beverages for any GSC event upon   
 request.  Currently, the menu selection, the hours of operation and the meal prices   
 vary depending on the type of business and the volume of business.    However, GSC   
 desires regular menu selection, regular normal hours of operation and fixed meal   
 prices during the summer semesters so as to offer full dining services year-round  
 
9. EXISTING FOODSERVICE RELATIONSHIPS 
 
 Pepsi is Glenville State College’s current “exclusive” beverage partner.  Pepsi has   
 exclusive pouring rights for fountain and bottled beverages at all campus locations as   
 well as specified vending.  This includes all campus dining locations, concessions,   
 catering, and vending. 
 
10. FLEX PLANS AND OTHER OPTIONS 
 
 Each non-resident and commuting student currently receives fifty (50) flex dollars which can 
 be spent at the Mollohan Campus Community Center cafeteria or the Rusty Musket.  Anyone 
 including faculty, students, staff and the general public can purchase flex dollars.  Flex dollars 
 are unlimited.  Flex dollars expire at the end of the academic year.  Patrons may also opt to 
 “pay as you go”.  Methods of payment are:  cash, check, credit card or debit card. 
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11. DMAPS 
 
 The College currently contracts with WV DMAPS (Department of Military Affairs and Public 
 Safety), and with the WV Division of Corrections and Rehabilitation, to provide space for its 
 educational and training objectives at a site located a short distance from the main 
 campus.  Food service is expected to be provided from time to time to certain of those 
 personnel or students, either within the existing on campus food service facility, or at the 
 separate off-campus facility.  Those food services shall be provided under a separate fee 
 structure, and a separate contract with the College. 
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